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99,625,540 97.11
1,865,685 1.82
1,102,133 1.07
102,593,358
10,058 100.00
2024 11

Signum Momentum Ltd

4/30/2025 0 2025/ /30| 101,950,000 | 71,252,855 | 99,625,540 | 97.11

Quartix Financial

Products 11 Ltd 2025/ /30| 101,950,000 | 29,835,088 1,865,685 1.82
4/30/2025
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0.30
0.10
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2024 11

2016 432,778,839 42,430 1.0241 100
2017 345,815,879 33,904 0.9210 90
2018 295,393,922 28,960 0.9377 92
2019 282,483,837 27,695 1.0035 98
2020 252,474,366 24,753 1.0234 100
2021 200,724,125 19,679 1.0239 100
2022 147,646,050 14,475 0.9484 93
2023 128,947,626 12,642 0.9527 93
2024 107,759,611 10,565 0.9869 97
2023 12 120,848,112 11,848 0.9688 95
2024 120,125,136 11,777 0.9752 96
118,993,644 11,666 0.9772 96

117,387,400 11,509 0.9815 96

115,547,796 11,328 0.9828 96

112,917,266 11,070 0.9842 96

110,612,840 10,844 0.9841 96

107,759,611 10,565 0.9869 97

105,431,844 10,337 0.9883 97

104,986,540 10,293 0.9910 97

10 104,280,807 10,224 0.9923 97

11 102,593,358 10,058 0.9947 98
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431,320,000 8,760,000 422,560,000
(431,320,000) (8,760,000) (422,560,000)
0 47,080,000 375,480,000
©) (47,080,000) (375,480,000)
0 60,470,000 315,010,000
©) (60,470,000) (315,010,000)
0 33,520,000 281,490,000
0 (33,520,000) (281,490,000)
0 34,790,000 246,700,000
©) (34,790,000) (246,700,000)
0 50,680,000 196,020,000
©) (50,680,000) (196,020,000)
0 40,350,000 155,670,000
©) (40,350, 000) (155,670,000)
0 20,330,000 135,340,000
©) (20,330,000) (135, 340,000)
0 26,150,000 109,190,000
©) (26,150,000) (109,190,000)
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15 05
2024 31
2024 2023
5,284,187 518,062 4,142,814 406,161
2,478,876 243,029 3,330,158 326,489
7,14 105,357,168 10,329,217 125,613,495 12,315,147
- - 128,121 12,561
637 62 - -
113,120,868 11,090,370 133,214,588 13,060,358
(3.158,961) (309,705) (1,751,580) (171,725)
(307,067) (30,105) (338,767) (33,213)
(3,466,028) (339,809) (2,090,347) (204,938)
(109,190,000)  (10,704,988)  (135,340,000)  (13,268,734)
(464,840) (45,573) 4,215,759 413,313
10 (109,654,840)  (10,750,561)  (131,124,241)  (12,855,421)
(113,120,868)  (11,090,370)  (133,214,588)  (13,060,358)
109,190,000 135,340,000
10 1.0042 98 0.9688 95
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15 05
2024 31
2024 2023
1,386,376 135,920 1,591,808 156,061
8,276 811 12,196 1,196
1,394,652 136,732 1,604,004 157,257
(60,533) (5,935) (57,994) (5,686)
(62,190) (6,097) - -
(121,957) (11,957) (143,699) (14,088)
(487,827) (47,827) (574,796) (56,353)
(304,887) (29,891) (359,247) (35,221)
(152,904) (14,991) (21,563) (2,114)
(322,186) (31,587) (344,795) (33,804)
(69,054) (6,770) - _
(66,350) (6,505) (143,699) (14,088)
(119,908) (11,756) (69,958) (6,859)
(1,767,796) (173,315) (1,715,751) (168,212)
(373,144) (36,583) (111,747) (10,956)
14 (401,718) (39,384) (983,167) (96,390)
14 4,700,843 460,871 1,469,966 144,115
(2,405) (236) (4,008) (393)
4,296,720 421,250 482,791 47,333
3,923,576 384,667 371,044 36,377
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15 05
2024 31

155,670,000 155,670,000 15,261,887 (5,737,334) (562,488) 149,932,666 14,699,399
(20, 330,000) (20, 330,000) (1,993,153) 1,150,531 112,798 (19,179,469) (1,880,355)
371,044 36,377 371,044 36,377

135,340,000 135,340,000 13,268,734 (4,215,759) (413,313) 131,124,241 12,855,421
135,340,000 135,340,000 13,268,734 (4,215,759) (413,313) 131,124,241 12,855,421
(26,150, 000) (26,150, 000) (2,563,746) 757,023 74,219 (25,392,977) (2,489,527)
3,923,576 384,667 3,923,576 384,667

109,190,000 109,190,000 10,704,988 464,840 45,573 109,654,840 10,750,561
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15 05
2024 31
2024 2023
3,923,576 384,667 371,044 36,377
24,555,452 2,407,417 19,769,856 1,938,237
401,718 39,384 983,167 96,390
(4,700,843) (460,871) (1,469,966) (144,115)
851,282 83,460 (589,282) (57,773)
128,121 12,561 (111,320) (10,914)
(637) (62) - -
(31,700) (3,108) (19,555) (1,917)
25,126,969 2,463,448 18,933,944 1,856,284
(23,985,596) (2,351,548)  (20,619,649) (2,021,550)
(23,985,596) (2,351,548)  (20,619,649) (2,021,550)
1,141,373 111,900 (1,685,705) (165,267)
4,142,814 406,161 5,828,519 571,428
5,284,187 518,062 4,142,814 406,161
1,209,603 118,589 1,492,684 146,343
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2024 31
1QEQ
2015 20
2023 12 29
2024 26
2023 12 29
15-05 2015
14
2024 31
100
Signum Momentum Limited 10
11
Quartix Financial Products Il Limited
10
100
MA WCM FP Limited
2025 30 2025 14

2023
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10
2023 12 29
7,500
0.1
0.025
2023 12 30
0.01
15,000
0.025 12,000
20
2024 31 66,350
2024 31 3,822
2023 31 143,699 2023
31 11,505
0.1
121,957 2023 143,699 2024 31

28,208 2023 35,301
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0.4
487,827 2023 574,796 2024 31
112,833 2023 141,205
0.3
0.1
322,186 2023 344,795 2024 31
51,802 2023 28,491
0.25
304,887 2023 359,247 2024 31
46,207 2023 28,762
402,399 2023 149,515

2024 31 7,271 2023 93,504

2023 12 30

0.09
62,190 2023 2024 31
16,812 2023
2024 31 5,284,187 2023 4,142,814 4,769,906
2023 3,240,639 10,828 2023 229,233 16,552
(2023 :343,009 3,510 2023 26,534
6,897 (2023 :51,036 48,159,856 2023

48,154,622 490,831 (2023 : 508,130
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2025 30

2024

105,777,948
(420,780)

130,735,118
(5,121,623)

105,357,168

125,613,495

106,680,000 2,602,992 2.37
106,680,000 102,754,176 93.67
105,357,168 96.04
131,850,000 4,416,975 3.37
131,850,000 121,196,520 92.43
125,613,495 95.8
2015 10 ( )
10,000
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135,340,000

135,340,000

(26,150,000)

155,670,000

(20,330, 000)

109,190,000

135,340,000
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10
2024 2023
109,654,840 131,124,241
(a) (1,895,229) (2,176,615)
107,759,611 128,947,626
31 109,190,000 135,340,000
C) 0.9869 0.9527
© 1.0042 0.9688
(a
(b 0.9869 2023 0.9527
107,759,611 2023 128,947,626 2024 31
109,190,000 2023 135,340,000
(c 1.0042 2023 0.9688
109,654,840 2023 131,124,241 2024 31

109,190,000 2023 135,340,000

11
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30 100

2024 2023

14.8 15.5

7.3 1.7

14.5 14.6

7.9 5.4

7.2 3.3

20.4 19.6

8.8 16.3

5.3 7.7

7.3 7.4

2.4 4.8

1.4 2.6

2.6 1.2

0.1 0.1

100.0 100.0

31 2023 31

6,897 4,769,906 5,284,187
- 2,478,876 2,478,876
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- - - 105,357,168 105,357,168
- 637 - - 637
490,832 17,189 6,807 112,605,950 113,120,868
- - - (3,158,961)  (3,158,961)
(279,392)  (334,371) - 306,696 (307,067)
(279,392)  (334,371) - (2.852,265)  (3.466,028)
211,440  (317,182) 6,897 109,753,685 109,654,840
2023 31
508,130 343,009 51,036 3,240,639 4,142,814
- - - 3,330,158 3,330,158
- - - 125,613,495 125,613,495
- 522 18 127,581 128,121
508,130 343,531 51,054 132,311,873 133,214,588
- - - (1,751,580)  (1,751,580)
(38,665)  (54,838) - (245,264) (338,767)
(38,665) (54,838) - (1,996,844)  (2,090,347)
469,465 288,693 51,054 130,315,029 131,124,241
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10 2023 10
2024 2023
21,144 46,947
31,718 28,869
690 5,105
2024 31 10 2023 10
2024 31
2023
2024 31
0.05 2023 0.06
1,301 2023 2,650
2024 31

0.05 2023 0.06
1,301 2023 2,650
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(
2024 31
0.72 2023 1.41
739,830 2023 1,708,871
0.72 2023 1.41 739,830 2023
1,708,871
2024
31 4.82 2023
3.16
2024 31
2023

¢

Signum Momentum
Limited "
Quartix Financial Products Il Limited

2024 31
776
(2023 31 : 760 )
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2024 31
2024 31
(c
23
2024 31

5,284,187 - - - 5,284,187

2,478,876 - - - 2,478,876

- 105,357,168 - - 105,357,168

637 - - - 637

7,763,700 105,357,168 - - 113,120,868
(3,158,961) - - - (3,158,961)
(307,067) - - - (307,067)

(3,466,028) - - - (3.466,028)
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2023 31
4,142,814 - - - 4,142,814
3,330,158 - - - 3,330,158
- 125,613,495 - - 125,613,495
- 128,121 - - 128,121
7,472,972 125,741,616 - - 133,214,588
(1,751,580) - - - (1,751,580)
(338,767) - - - (338,767)
(2,090,347) - - - (2,090,347)
12
13

14
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2024  3.11
(2023  5.10 )

125,613,495

(24,555, 452)
(401,718)
4,700,843

105,357,168

4,299,125

144,896,552

(19,769, 856)
(983,167)
1,469,966

125,613,495

486,799
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFOPMANCE
OF WINTOMN 15-05 (ALUD)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Asal 31 July 2024

Motes 024 023
AUD AUD

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 6 5,284,187 4,142,814
Amount due from broker 2478876 3,330,158
Fimancial assets af fair value through profi or loss 7,14 105,357,168 125,613,495
Interest receivable - 128121
Cither receivable 637 -
TOTAL ASSETS 113,120.868 133,214,588
LIABILITIES
Redemption payable (3158961} (1,751,580}
Accounts payable and acerued liabilities 5 (307,067) _ (338.767)
TOTAL LIABILITIES {3.466,028) (2,050,347}
EQUITY
Unitholders” capital E (10, 190,000 (135,340,000}
(Surplus)‘defict (464, 8400 4.215.759
TOTAL EQUITY 10 {109,654, 840) (131,124,241}
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY (113,120,865 (133,214, 58%)
NUMBER. OF UNITS IN ISSUE ki 1043, 1 SHL 00 135,340,000
MET ASSET VALUE PER UNIT 10 1.0042 09658

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial datements,
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE
COF WINTOMN 15-05 (AUD)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHEMNSIVE INCOME

For the vear ended 31 July 2024
Motes 2024 23
ALD ALUD
INCOME
Interest income from perdommance linked notes 1,386,376 1,591, 808
Other interss income 8.276 12,196
Total investment mcome 1,394,652 1,604,004
EXPENSES
Audit fees 5 (60,533} (57,994}
Adminisration fee expenses 5 (62, 190) -
Agent company’s fee 5 (121,957) (143,699)
Digrnbutor's fee o (4%7,827) (574,796)
Investment advisor fees 5 (30:4,887) (359,247)
Legal fecs 5 (152,904) {21,563}
Manazemen! foes 5 (322,185) (344,795}
Onbearding fees 5 (69, 0543 -
Trustee and trustee’s delegate fees 5 (66, 350 {143,699
Oither operating expenses 5 (119, 908) (69,958
Total operating expenses (1,767, 796) (1,715,751}
MNET LOSS BEFORE INVESTMENT AND
EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES (373,144 (111,747}
INVESTMENT AND EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES
el realised loss on financial assels
at fair value through profit or loss 14 (400, 718) (983,167}
MNet change in unrealised gain on financial assels
at fair value through profit or loss 14 4,700,843 1,469,966
N foreign exchange loss (2,405) {4,008}
4,296,720 482,791
NET COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR 3,923,576 371044

The accompanying notes are an mtegral part of these fmancial satements,
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PHILOSCPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOWD PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE

COF WINTOMN 15-05 (AUD)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the vear ended 31 July 2024

Ab 1 Augud 2022
Eedemption of units
Net comprehensive income

At 31 July 2023

At 1 August 2023
Redemption of units

Wet comprehensive income

AL 31 July 2024

The sccompanying notes are an integral part of these fmancial statements,

Mumber of
Units Unitholders {Dreficit)’
Ouistanding Capital Surplus Total Equity
AUD ALY AU
(Note B) (Mote &)

155,670,000 155,670,000 (5737.334) 149,932,666
£20.330,000) {(20,330.000) 1,150,531 (19.172,469)
A - 371044 3TL044

135 340,000 135,340,000 (4,215,759 131,124,241
135,340,000 135, 340,000 {4,215,750) 131,124,241
{26,150,000) {26.150,000) 757,023 (25392,97T)
- - 3923576 3,023 576

104, 150,004 LK, 1 90,0060 464,840 109,654,840
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE

CF WINTOMN 1505 (AUD)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the vear ended 31 July 2024
Meote 224 2023
AU AUD
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Mel comprehensive income for the year 3,923,576 3TLOM
Adjustments for:
Proceeds from sale of finanaal assels
at fair value through profit or loss 24,555452 19,768,856
et realised loss on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss 401,718 ¥83.167
et change in unrealised (gain} on financial assets
al Fair value through profit or loss (4,700,843} (1,469, 966}
Drecrease/{increase) in amount due from broker $51,282 (589, 282)
Decrense{increase) in intered receivable 128,121 (111,320}
Increase in other receivables {637) -
Decrense in acoounts payable and acorued liabilities (31,700) (19.553)
Mot cash fows generated from operating activitics 25,126,969 18,933,944
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY
Pavments on redemption of units {23.985.506) (206196493
Ne cash flows used in financng activity {23,985 596) (20,619,649}
NET INCREASEADECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,141,373 (1,685,705}
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 4,142,814 5 E28.519
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 3 5,284,187 4,142,814
Supplemental cash flow information:
Interedd received 1,209 603 1,492 634

The zccompanying notes are an integral part of these fmancial statements,

b
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE
CF WINTOMN 15-05 (AUD)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2024

L THE TRUST

Philosophic 2 Investment Trust {the *Trust") 15 an open-ended umbrella wnit irust constituted by a
master irust deed dated 20 March 2015 under the laws of the Cayman [slands, regulated as a mutal
fund under the Mutual Funds Aa (Revisedh of the Cavman Islands, emtered into between 1Q EQ
Manngement Boarmuda Limited (the “Manager™) and HSBC Trustee (Cayman) Limited (*HSBC
Truddeey, Om 20 December 2023, HSBC Trudee and HSBC Inditutional Trud Services (A=)
Limited (*Trustee’s Delegate™) resigned from the positions of the trustee and tnestec’s delegate,
respectively. CIBC Canbbean Bank and Trust Company (Cayman} Limited (formerly FirstCaribbean
International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited) (the “Trustee”) and 10-EQ Consultants
(Singapore) Pie Lid (name changed with effed from 26 March 2024 from [Q EQ Services (Singapore)
PTE. Lid} (the * Administratoe™) were appointed as the trustee and administrator, respectively on
29 December 2025, The Trust has been established as an umbrella unit st with the abality to create
and establish separate portfolio or series trusts to which assets and liabilities attributable to such series
trust will be applied,

Bond Plus Fund Linked to the Performance of Winton 1505 (AU (the “Series Trust™) is a senes
trust of the Trust contituted pursuant to the master trust deed and a supplemental trugt deed dated
14 May 2015 made between HSBC Trustee and the Manager, Asat 31 July 2024, two serics trusts
had been established.

The mvestment objedive of the Series Trust 15 to pursue capital gain over the medium to long term,
while aiming to ensure a ned asset value per Unit at the time of the maturity date that is not less than
100%% of the Australian Dollar (*AUD™) denominated offer price. The Manager aims to achieve such
investment objective by invedting all of the proceeds from the ise of wnits in 10-year AUD
denominated zero coupon notes {each a “Zero Coupon Mote™) izsued by Signum Momentum Limited
{the " Zero Coupon MNote [ssuer™) and 10-year AUD denominated performance linked notes (each a
“Performance Linked Mote™) ismied by Quantix Financial Products 1T Limited (the “Performance
Linked Mote Ismuer”). The Zero Coupon MNotes seek to provide their holders with profection of 1008
of the Zero Coupon Notes' principal amount {in AUD) if aich holders hold their Zero Coupon Noles
until the Mote Maturity Date. The remaining net proceeds from the 1sue of units, afler investment in
the Zero Coupon Notes and payment of certam expenses. will be invested in the Performance Linked
Motes. Investment in the Performance Linked Notes will provide investors with exposure to the
performance of MA WOM FP Limited (the “Underlying Fund™),

The Manager of the Series Trust expects that the Series Trust will be terminated on 14 May 2025,
after the maturity of the Series Trust investments {i.e. 30 April 2025),
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE
CF WINTON 15-05 (AUD)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2024

21 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Series Trust applied for the first time certain amendments o the standards, which are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, The Series Trus had not early adopted any
standards, interpretations or amendments that have been issued but are not yet effective. The nature
and the impact of each amendment applicabile to the Series Trust is described as follows:

mnultinnus lnIa‘q.S 2 chnf_l; the dl:ill'l':tl.ﬁﬂ bmwcn clianges in accounting etimeates and changes in
accoumting policies. Accounting cstimmtes are defined as monetary smounts in financial satements
that are subject to measmement uncertzinty. The amendments also clanify how enlities use
measurement technigues and inputs to develop accounting estimates. Since the Series Trust's approach
and policy align with the amendments, the amendments had no impact on the Series Trust"s financial
slatements.

Disclone af Aocounting qum’e;g - Amendments fo JAS | and IFRS Practice Statemen 2
Amendments o TAS 1 require entitics to disclose their material accounting policy information rather
than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy infosmation is material if, when
considered together with other information included i s entity’s financial statements, 11 can
reazonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary vzers of general purpose financial
statemenits make on the basis of those financial statements. Amdadments to IFRS Pracice Statemeit
2 Making Maternality Judgements provide non-mandastory guidinee on how to apply the conoept of
materiality to accounting policy disclosures. The Serics Trust has disclosed the material accounting
policy information in note 4 to the financial datements. The amendments did not have any impad on
the measurement, recognition or presentation of any itam in the Series Trust's financial statements,

2 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The new and amended dandards and interpretations that are issued. bt nol vel effedive, up to the
date of issuance of the Series Trust's financial Satements are disclosed below, The Series Trust intends
to adopt these new and amended standards and interpretations, if apphicable, when they become
effective.

o i =1

In Jaﬂllar}r ‘ID‘?{I lh: I.’LS-B- 1sm=d amm:ﬁmrﬂ:s tu pﬁlra.gmphs 69 to 76 uf IAS 1 to specify the
requirements for classifying liabilitics as cument or non-cument. The amendments clarify:

o What is meant by a right to defer settlement

« That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period

« That clessification is unaffected by the likelihood that s entity will exercise its deferral right

That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability 15 itscf an cquity instrmument

wontld the terms of a bability not impact its classification

The amendments are effedtive for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and
sl be applied retrospectively. The Series Trud is curently assessing the mpad the amendments
will have on current practics and whether existing loan agreements may require rencgotiation.

10
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE
CF WINTON 15-05 (AUD)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2024

i SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Series Trust's financial statements requires management to make judzements,
estimates and assumptions that affed the reported amounts of revenes, exponses, assets and liabilities
and the accompanying disclosures, Uncertainty about these asammptions and estimates could reailt
in cutcomes that could require a material adjusiment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability
affected m fulure periods,

Judgements

Inthe process of applying the Senes Trust's accounting policics, management has made the following
judzements, which have the most significam effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
slatements:

Ty

Uncertaintics exist with respect 1o the interpretation of complex tax regulations and changes i tax
laws on Foreign withholding tax. Given the wide range of intemational imvestments, differences
arising between the actual investment income and the assumptions made, or future changes to such
azaumptions, could necessitale future adjustments to tax expense already recorded. The Senies Thust
establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible consequences of andits by the tax
authorities of the respective countries in which it investz. The amounts of such provisiens are based
o yarious factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax
regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible to authority. Such differences of interpretation
may arise on a wide variety of i=ues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective
investment’s domicile. Asthe Series Trust assesses the probability for litigation and subsequent cash
outflew with resaect 1o laxes as remole, no contingent liability has been recognised.

Fair value
For fair value of financial insgruments, please refer to Note 14,
4. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Other than as adjuded for the adoption of liquidation basis for the arrent period and as further

explained in the followmg basis of preparation to the financial gatements, the signmificant accounting
policies applicd in the preparation of these financial Statcments are set out below,

Statement of compliance

The financial satements have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASE, and
interpretations issned by International Fmancial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRICT) of
the IASE.

11
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE
CF WINTON 15-05 (AUD)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2024

4. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for financial assets o
fair value through profit or loss ("FVPL™) that have been measured &t fair value. The financial

statements are presented in AUD, which is also the Series Trust’s fimctional comency, and all values
are rounded (o the nearest AUD except where otherwize indicated.

As explained in note 1 to the financial satements, the Series Trust will be terminated following the
maturity of the investments, i.e. 30 April 2025, Accordingly, in the opinion of the Manager of the
Series Trust, the going concern basis 15 no longer applicable and these financial statements have been
prepared on & liquidation basis, The Manager of the Series Trus has assessed the camying values of
the Series Trust's assets and lisbilities and determined that these approximate the net realisable
values mnd edimated seitlement amomts, respectively. The net realizable value of the financial assets
atl fair value through profit or loss is based on the Manager of the Series Trust's best estimate. This is
an estimate ad the adual net realizable value could differ and the difference could be material,

Bacvenue recognition

Reveniie is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Series Trust ad
when the revenue can be measured reliably. Interest income is recognised on a time apportioned basis
taking into account the principal cutstanding and the effective interest rate applicable.

%
(i Claassificition
In accordance with IFRS 9, the Series Trust classifies its financial assets and financial
liahilities at initial recognition into the catezories of financial asscts and financial lishilities
discuzsed below.

Financial asseis
The Series Tost classifies its financial assets as subsequently mezsured at amortised cost or
measured st FVPL on the basis of both:

* The entity’s business model for managing the financial sssets
* The contraciual cxch Now characterigtics of the fnancial asets

Finamcial asvets meamred of anorti sed cost
A debt mstrument 15 measured at amortised cost i it 1s held within a business model whose

ghjedtive is to hold finanaal assets in order to colledt contractual cash flows and its contractual
terms give rise on specified dates to cash Aows that are solely payments of principal and mterest

{"SFFI") on the principal amount outstanding, The Series Trust includes in this category cash
and cash equivalents, amount due from broker snd interest receivable,
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE
CF WINTON 15-05 (AUD)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2024

4. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

fcontimued)
(1) Classffoarion (continued)

Fimmmcial aorets measwred af FVFL
A fomicial assel 15 measured a2 FVPLf:

ia)  Its contractual terms do not give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are SPPL on the
principal mmount eutstanding; or

(b It is mot held within a business model whose objective is either to collect contractual cash
flows, or to both collect contractual cash Aows and sell, ar

() AL initial recognition, it is irrevocably designated as messured a1 FVPL when doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement of recognition inconsigency tha
wonild otherwise arise from measuring assets or liablities or recognising the gains md
losses on them on different bases,

The Series Trust includes in this calegory:

L Dbl instruments.  These include investments that are held under a business model (o
manage them on a fair value basis for investment income and fair value gains.

Financia Halvilittes

Fimemeial Habilities meanwed af amontised coxt

This category includes all financial liabilities, odher than those measured at FVPL. The Series
Trust includes in this category redemption payable, accomnts payable and aconed lishilities,

() Recoghition
The Series Trust recognises a financial asset or liability when, and only when. it becomes a party
tathe contractual provisions of the instrument. Purchases of sales of financial assets that requare
delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the
markelplace (regular way rades) are recognised on the trade date 1.e., the date that the Series
Trust commits o purdmse or sell the asset.

(ife) Tengial measnrement
Financial assets al FVPL are initially recorded in the datament of financral position at far value,
All transaction costs for =uch instruments are recognised directly in profit or loss.

Fimancial assets (other than those classified as at FVPL) are measured initially af their fair value
plus any directly atiributable moremental cods of acquisition or isare,

vl Snbsequent mearurement
After initial measrement, the Series Trust measures financial instraments which are classified
as at FVPL a fair value. Subsequent changes in the fair value of these financial instruments
are recordied in “net change in unrealised loss on Fimancial assets al FVPL” in the salement of
comprehensive income. Interest and dividends eamed or paid on these indmments are recorded
separately in interest revenue or expense and dividend revenue or expense in the statement of
comprehensve income.
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE

CF WINTON 15-05 (AUD)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2024

4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Financial ingruments tcontinued;
fivl  Siboeguent measnrement (continued)

Financaal habilities, other than those chisafied as at FVPL, are mensured al amortised cod nang
the effective interest method, Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
lisbilities are derecognised. as well as through the amortisation process.

The effedive interest method i= 2 methed of calaulating the amortised cost of a financial asse
or a financial liability and of allocating the interest income of interest expense over the relevant
period.  The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipls through the expedted life of the financial instnament o, when appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net camying amount of the financial assel or financial liabality,. When
calenlating the effective intered rate, the Series Trust edimates cash flows considering all
comractual terms of the financial instruments b does not consider future credit losses, The
caleulation inclodes all fees paid or received between panties to the contract that are an integral
part of the effedive infered rate, transaction costs and all other premivms or discounts,

v Levecognition
A financial ssset (or, where applicable a part of a finmneial asset or part of a group of similar
financial asset=) is derecognised where:

. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have eqired or

. The Series Trest has transfemed its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash fows in full without material delay (o a
third party under a “pass-through™ srrangement; and

. Either {a) the Series Trust has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
assel, of () the Senes Trust has neither transferred nor rdwined subsantially all the risks
and rewards of the assel, but has transfared control of the asset.

When the Series Trust has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through armangement, and has neither transfemred nor retained substantially all the nsks and
rewards of the asset nor transfored control of the assd, the asset is recognized to the extent of the
Series Trust's conbinuing mvalvernent in the assel. In that case, the Series Trud also recognises an
associated lighility.  The transfemed asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
refleds the rights and obligations that the Series Trust has retained.

The Series Trust derecognises a financial liabiliy when the obligationunder the liability is disclanged,
cancelled or expired.
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE
CF WINTON 15-05 (AUD)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2024
4. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Eair value measirement

The Series Trust measures financial instruments at fair value ot each reporting date. Fair value is the
price ihat would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a hability i an orderly ransaction
between market participants af the messurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transter the hability takes place either:

= In the principal market for the asset or lisbility, or
. In the absence of a principal market, in the mos advantageons market for the asset or lability,

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Series Trust,

The fair value of an a=set or a lability i= messured vang the assumptions that market participants
would wse when pricing the asset or liability, assmming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of & non-financial asset takes into account a markel participant’s ability to
generte economic benefits by wang the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
markel participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use,

The Fair value of finaneal instruments is based on their quoted market prices on a recognised exchange
and valued at last traded price or sounced from a reputable broker or counterparty, in the case of non-
exchange traded instruments, af the reporting date without any dedudion for estimated future selling
Ccosts.

For all aliver financial instruments not traded inan active market, the fair value is determined by using
valuation techniques decmed to be appropriate in the circumstances. Valuation techniques include the
market approach (ic. using recent amn's lenzth market transadions adjusted as necessary and
reference o the curent markel valie of mother insriment that is sibatantially the same) and the
income approach {i.e., discounted cash flow analysis md option pricing moedels making a5 mudh use
of avalable and supportable markel data as posable),

All assets and liabilities for which fair value s measured or disclosed m the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hicrarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
15 significant to the fair value measorement a5 a whole:

= Level 1 - Cuoted (unadjusted) marked prices in achive markets for identical assets or liabilities

. Lewel 2 - Valuation techniques for whidh the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurament is directly or indiredly observable

. Lewel 3 - Valuation techniques for whidh the lowest level input that is significant to the far
value mepsurament 15 unobservable

For a=sets and liabilities that are recognised inthe financial statements on a reauring bass, the Series
Trust determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing

categorisation {based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole} at the end of eadh reporting period
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE
CF WINTON 15-05 (AUD)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2024

4. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES { continued)

i f financial s
For financial assets al amorfised cos, impaiment aflowances are recognised under the general
approach where expected credit losses are recogmsed in two slages. For oredil exposires where there
has not been 2 significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Series Trust is required
to provide for credit losses that result from possble defall events within the next 12 months, For
those credit exposures where there has been a significant increasce in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expedied over the remaining life of the exposure
imespective of the timing of the defauli,

L1l

] d
The Series Trust "s functional and presentation curmency is the AUD.

The functional curmency reflects the currency in which the Series Trust primarily generates and
expends cash from its activities.

Tramsactions during the period in currencies cether than the fundional aerency are recorded at the
rates of exchange prevailing st the date of the transaction, Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currancies are refranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting period.
Feealised and unrealised exchange gaing or losses on foreign currency ransacions are charged or
aredited as profit or loss i the satement of comprehensive meome as net exchange gaings or losses.

Mon-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in 2 foreign currency are transtated
usmg the exchange rates s at the dates of the initial imnsaction. MNon-monctary items measured o
fair valee in & foreign cumancy are translated using the exchange rates st the date when the fair value
was determined.

Therate of exchange in effect at 31 July 2024 were AUDH = USD 0.6542 (2023: AUD] = USINLG6E3),
AUDL = GBPOSOSS (2023 AUDL = GBPO.5199) and AUDL = JPY9R119 (2023 AU =
JPY. T683).

Related parties
A party 15 considered to be rdated 1o the Series Trust iF:

@) the parly 15 & person or a clese member of that person’s family and that person
(i) has comtral or joint control over the Serics Trest;
iy has significant influesice over the Series Trust; or
(mi} 15 2 member of the key management personnel of the Series Trust or of a parent of the
Series Trust; or
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE

CF WINTON 15-05 (AUD)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2024

4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES { continued)

Related parties (continued)

(bh  the party 15 an entily where any of the following conditions applies:

(1) the entity and the Series Trust are members of the same groupy,

(p  one entity 15 an associate or joint vendure of the other entity (or of & parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the entity);

{uii} the entity and the Serics Trud are joint vesstures of the same third party;

(iv)  one aity isa joint venture of @ third entity and the other atity is an associate of the third
entity;

(¥) the entity s a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of emplovees of either the
Series Trust or an entity related to the Series Trus;

ivi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (ak

(vit) & person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is & member of the
key management personnel of the entity {or of a parent of the entity), and

(viti) the entity, or any member of the Series Trust of which it 1= & part, provides key
management personnel services Lo the Series Trust.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash at bank, cash on hand, time deposits, and short-temm
highly liquid investments readily convertible to known amounts of cash and sibject to inggnificant
rizk of changes in value. Cash at bank is camried at cost.

Cash and eash equivalents denominated in other aumency are translated into AUD at the applicable
rate of exchange at the reporting date.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at bank.

Unitholders' capital

Redeamable units are clasafied as equily indruments when:

. The redeemable units entitle the holder to @ pro rata share of the Senes Trust's net assets in the
event of the Series Trest's liquidation.

. The redeemable units are i the class of imstruments that 15 subordinate to all other classes of
Instruments,

. The redeamable units i the class of mstruments that 15 subordimate to all other classes of
instruments have identical features.

" The redeemable units do not include any contractual obligation to deliver cash or another
finamcial asset other than the holder's rights to 2 pro rata share of the Series Trost's nel asses.

* The total expeded cash flows attributable o the redeemable units over the life of the instrument
are based substantinlly on the profit or loss, the change in the recognised nel assetsor the change
in the far value of the recognised and unrécoemised net assets of the Serees Trust over the hife
of the instrument,
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE
CF WINTON 15-05 (AUD)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2024

4. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES { continued)

LUnitholders' eapital (continned)

In addition to the redeemable units having all the above Features, the Series Tros must have no other

financial msinmment or contract that has:

o Total cash flows based substantially an the profit or loss, the change in the recognized net assefs
or the change in the fair value of the recognised and unreongnised nef assets of the Series Trst,
and

= The effeat of substantially restricting or fixing the residual retum to the ingtrument holders.

The Series Trust continuously assesses the classification of the redeemable participating units. 1f the
redeemable participating units cease 1o have all the features or meet all the conditions sel oul to be
classified as equity, the Series Trust would reclassify them as financial liabilities and measure them at
fair value & the date of reclassification, with any differences from the previous carrying mmount
recognised in equity. I the redeemable units subsequently have all the fegures and med the
conditions Lo be classified as equity, the Series Trus would reclassify them as equily ingruments and
measure them at the carmying amount of the lisbilitics at the date of the reclassitication,

The isuance, acquisition, sd cancellation of the redeemable participating units are accounted for as
equity transactions. Upon issuance of units, the consideration received is included in equity.

Mo guin or loss is recognised mthe gatement of comprehensive income onthe purchase, sale, issuance,
redemption, or cancellation of the Series Trust's own equity instruments.

Provision for future ¢ for the Series Trus

As provided for within the offering memorandum (the “Cffering Memorandem™), upon its
establishment, the Series Trus has provided for certain fees, including admindstration fees, audit Fees,
and ofher operating expanses, pavable to service providers for the teem of the Senes Trust as
determined by the Manager. This up-firont provision of fees is mtended to ensure thal continumg
investors are nol disadvantaged when redanptions occur [eaving them with a disproportionate share
of these codts which were committed at the lamch of the Series Trud.  These provisions have been
fully reflected in the nef asset value published during the corrent accounting period.

The audited financial dalements are prepared in accordance with IFRSs, Certain of these provisions
represent provisions for expenses relating to services that will be provided to the Series Thest over its
Iife and therefore are required to be recognised over the life of the Series Trust in accordance with
IFR.Ss.

Therefore, where these provisions relate o expenses to be inourred in fiture periods, these have been
excluded from the statement of comprehensive income and the statement of financial position. Asthe
exclusion of these provisions in the satemmt of comprehmsive income and statement of financial
position results in a difference in comparison to the published net asset value Tor the reasons stated
above, & reconciliztion has been provided in Note 10 to the financial statements.
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE
CF WINTON 15-05 (AUD)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2024

4. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES { continued)

iancial ass fail izl

o s financial assets and liabilities af fair value th profit or loss
Net gains or s on Fimncial assets gl FVPL are changes in the fair value of financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as o FVPL and exclude interest income.

Unrealised gains and losses compnise changes m the fair value of fmancial instnments for the period
and from reversal of the prior period’s unrealised gains and losses for financial mstruments which
were realised in the reporting period.

Realised gains and losses on disposals of financial instruments classified as at fair valoe through profit
o loss are caloulated using the weighted average method. They represent the difference between an
insdrument’s initial camying amount and disposal amount.

3 FEES

Uil 29 Decemiber 2023

HEBC Trustee and the Trugtee's Delegate are entitled to receive a trustes fee of 0.1% per annum of
the offer price multiplied by the number of units cutstanding (the "Fee Amount™) accued and
calanlated on each valuation day and payable monthly mn arears, subjed o a minimum gquarterly fee
of AT, 500,

HESBC Trustee and the Trugtee’s Delegate will be entitled to receive transaction and processing fees
at normal commercial rates,

For the custody of the Trust's assds, HSBC Trustee and the Trustee’s Delegate will also be entitled to
receive a custodian fee of 0.025% per annum of the assets under custody, acaued amd calailated as at
ench valuation day and payvable monthly in amears.

Effective 30 Decenber 2023

The Trustee 15 entitled to receive a trustee fee of 020196 per annum of the Fee Amount acoued and
cileulated on each valuation day and payable monthlv in arears, subject to a minimum of USS1 5,000
PEF ANNM,

For the costody of the Trost's assets the Tristee will also be entitied to receive a custodian fee of
0.025% per annum of the Net Asset Value, subject to a minimum annual fee of USS120040, USS20
per transaction as well as standard wire, courier and communication charges.

Asal 31 July 2024, the Trustee fee, HSBC Trusee fee and Trudee's Delegate Fees for the year totalled
ALDEGE,350 of which AUD3,822 was payable as at 31 July 2024 and is included in accounts payable
and acenued ligbilities.

Asat 31 July 2023, HSBC Trustee fee and Trustee's Delegate fees for the year totalled AUD143, 695

of which AUDH 1 505 was payable as at 31 July 2023 and is included in accounts payable and acemed
liabilities.
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE
CF WINTON 15-05 (AUD)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2024
5. FEES {continued)

Agent company's fee

Mitsubishi UF JMorgan Stanley Securities Co, Lid (the ™ Agent Compmany and Distributor™) is entitled
to recave a fes of 0.1% per annum of the Fes Amount acomed and calculsted as at each valuation day
and payable monthly in arears.

The agent company’s fee for the vear tofalled AUDI2195T (2023 AUDIA3.699) of which
AUL2E, 208 was pavable as at 31 July 2024 (2023: AUDAS 301} and s included in accounts payable
and accrued ligbilities,

istributor
The Agent Company and Distribator is also entitled to receive a distributor fee of 0.4% per annum of
the Fee Amount accmied and calonlated 2= o each valuation day and payable monthly in amears.

The distritmtor’s fee for the year tolalled AUDGET, 2T (2023: AUDG T4, 796) of which AUD112,833
wis payable a5 at 31 Juby 2024 (2023; AUDMA1.205) and i= included in accounts payable and scoued
liabilities.

Mansgemant fees

The Manager is entitled to receive a management fee of 0.3% per annum of that part of the Fee Amount
which is equal to or less than AUDDOG,000, 000 and 0.1% per annum of that part of the Fee Amount
which is greater than AUDE 00,000,000 accrued and calculated on each valuation day, payable
manthly in srrears and subject to a minimum ammoal fe of AUDZ0,000. The Manager will also be
entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust @ inception feo of USDGE0,000 payable as soon
as possible after the initial closing date.

The management fee for the vear totalled AUD322,186 (2023 AUD344,795) of which ALDS1,802
was payable as at 31 July 2024 {2023 AUD2E4%91) and is included in accounts payable and acarued
liabilities.

Iovestment advisor fecs

Mitsubishi UFJ Kok Assel Manasement Co., Lid. (the *Investment Advisor”}is entitled to receive
a fee of 0.25% per annum of the Fee Amount acaued and caloulated a5 at cach valuation day and
pavable monthly in anrcars.

The investment advisor fee for the year totalled AUDI0SET (2023: AUD3S9.247) of which
AUDA6.207 was payable as at 31 July 2024 (2023: AUD2E 762 and i included in acoounts payable
and accrued lisbilities

Other fees

The other fees meluding other operating fees for the vear totalled AUDIO2 399 (2023: AUDT49.515)
of which AUT7.271 as payable as at 31 July 2024 (2023; AUDS3,504) and is included in accounts
payable and accrued liabilities.
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE
COF WINTOM 15-05 (AUD)

ROTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2024
5. FEES {continued)

Adminisration fees

Effective 30 December 2023, the Administrator 1s entitled to receive an administration fee of 0.09%%
per annum of the Fee Amount acorued and caleulated as at each valuation day and pavable quarterly
in advance.

The adminigration’s fee for the vear totalled AUDEZ 190 (2023: AUD Nil) of which AUD6,81 2 was
pavable as at 31 July 2024 (2023: AUD Milyand is included in accounts payable and acorued liabilities.

. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Asat 31 July 2024, the cash at bank of AUDS, 284, 187 (2023; AUDG,142.814) represented a deposit
of AUD, 769,906 (2023; AUD3,240,639), a United States dollar deposit of USDI0S28 (2023
US[229,233) equivalent to AUD16,552 (2023 AUD343,009), a British Pound Sterling deposit of
GBP3.510 (2023; GBP26,534) equivalent to AUDGEST (2023; AUDSL036) and a non interest
bearing Japanese Yen deposit of JPY4E,159856 (2023 JPY48.154,622) equivalent to AUD490.831
(2023 AUDS0%,1300, Al deposits were placed with The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited ("HSBC™) and CIBC Canbbean Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
{formerly FirgCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited). an affiliated
company of the Trustee.

W FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2024 023

ALUD AUD

Fimancial asscts at fair value through profit or loss, at cost 105,777,948 130.735118

Unrealized loss {420, 780) (5,121,623)
Financial assets at fair vale through profit or loss,

at fair valoe 105,357,168 125,613,495

The Performance Linked Mote i= linked to the performance of the Underlyving Fund. The retum from
the Performance Linked Mote will be determined by reference to the value of 4 notional invedment in
the Underlving Fund. The Performance Linked Note has be issued by the Performance Linked Note
I==eer with 4 maturity date of 30 April 2025,

The payment by the Zero Coupon Nole Issner of the redemption amount of the Zero Coupon Note al
scheduled maturity date is secured by a swap, under which the Zearo Coupon Note Isaser pays the
ismie proceeds of the Zero Coupon Mote to swap comterparty on the issue date and reccives from
swap counterparty the scheduled redemption price multiplied by the principal amount on scheduled
maturity date. The Zero Coupon Mote will be redeemied on their scheduled maturity date on 30 April
2025 at 100%% of their principal amount.
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE
COF WINTOM 15-05 (AUD)

ROTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2024

7 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR. VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

The breakdown of the financial assets af fair value through profit or loss is as follows:

Holdings Fair value %o of et
AUD assels

Asat 31 July 2024
Performance Linked MNote 106, 650,000 2,602 552 237%
Zero Coupon Note 106, G0, 000 102,754,176 93.67%
Todal 105,357,168 S6.04%%
Heldings Fair value %o of met
ALD assels

Asal 31 July 2023
Performance Linked Nole 131,350,000 4,416,875 3.37%
Zero Coupon Mote 131,350,000 121,196,520 9243%
Tonal 125613495 45 8%

8. UNITHOLDERS" CAPITAL

Subscripfions

During the Initial Offer Period, Units may be subscribed for by Eligible Investors a1 the Offer Price
per Unit.  The Initial Cffer Period will commence on 31 August 2005 and will close on 7 October
2005 (the "Initial Offer Perod"y. Units subseribed for during the Initial Offer Period will be issued
on the Initial Closing Date. The Manager may detarmine to terminate the initial offer of Units for my
FEAsOn,

Following the expiration of the Initial Offer Period, Units will not be ava lable for subsaription,
Redenptions

Units may be submitted for repurchase at the option of Unitholders on each Repurchase Day, which
is each Dealing Day and'or such other day or days as the Manager (in consiltalion with the Tristes)
may in any particular case defermine, up te and including the Final Repurchase Day.

The minimum number of Units that may be submitted for repurchase as at any Repurchase Day by

any Unitholder s 10000 Umits, with ameunts m excess thereof being m inmtegral multiples of 10,000
or such other amoumits as the Manager may detamine,

2z
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE
COF WINTOM 15-05 (AUD)

ROTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2024

& UNITHOLDERS' CAPITAL (contimued)

2024 2023
AUD ALD
Units in issue:
109,190,000 (2023: 135,340,000 wnits of AUD.00 each 109, 190,000 135,340,000
MNumber of Number of
units units
Nomber of isued and ful by paid uniis:
At beginning of the year 135,340,000 155,670,000
Redeemed during the year (261500040 20,330,000}
At end of the year 109, 150,000 135,340,000

9 TAXATION

Under the current laws of the Cayman [=lands, the Trest and the Series Trug will not be liable for ay
profits or capital gans tax in the Cayman Islands.

The Trust has received an undertaking from the Governor in Cabinet of the Cayman Islands in
accordance with Sedion 81 of the Truss Ad (Revised) of the Cayman [slands that, for a period of 50
years fromthe date of the creation of the Trust. any legislation enacted in the Cayman [slands imposing
tax computed on profits of income, or computed on capital assets, gains or appreciation or any &y in
the nature of estate duty or inheritance tax shall not be applicable to the Trust.

Income from other junsdidions, including distribotions from securities isued in olher countries, may
e subject to withholding or capital gain taxes imposed by such countries. Withhelding taxes on the
foreizn income may be withheld in accordance with the applicable country’s tax rates.

3
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE
COF WINTOM 15-05 (AUD)

ROTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 July 2024

i, RECONCILIATION BETWEEN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO UNITHOLDERS PER THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND PUBLISHED WET ASSET VALUE

2024 2023
AUD AUD
Met assels attributable to unitholders per financial statements 108,654,840 131,124,241
Adjustment (o provisions (see (a) below) {1,895,229) (2,176,615}
et asscts used for caloulating published net as=et valug
per umit &= af the reporiing date 107,780,611 128,047 626
Publizhed number of units in issue as at 31 July (see Nole 8) L0, 1 5W) (0 135, 340,000
Published net asset value per unit in isae (see (b below) 0.9865 0.9527
Nt asset valie per unit in issue (see (c) below) 1.0042 09688

(@) The published net asset value per unit issued is caloulated in accordance with the Offering
Memorandum and includes a provision for theimstee fee, andit fee and other operating expenses
throughout the intended life of the Series Trust, instead of those amounts being expensed i the
period they relate to, as required under IFRSs.

(hy  The clculgtion of published net asset value per unit of AUDD 9869 (2023: AUDO.9527) is
based on the net assd value of AUDLOT, 759,611 (2023: AUDI28.947,626) and on the total
namber of 104,190,000 units isswed at 31 Juby 2024 (2023; 1353400007,

(g} Thecaloulation of net asset value attnbutable to wnitholders per the financial statements per unit
of AUDL 0042 (2023: AUDD. 9588) is baszed on the nel asset value of AUDL09.654 840 (2023:
ALTM31,124,241 1 and on the total number of 10%, 190,600 units isuedat 31 July 2024 {2023:
135,340,000},
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE
CF WINTOMN 15-05 (AUD)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2024

1. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES

Otheer financial instrumenis

The Series Trust s investing activities expose it to various types of risk which are associated with the
financial mstruments in which it mvests  The most mportant types of financial risk to which the
Series Trust is exposed are market risk, oedit risk, and liguidity risk. Market sk inchides foreign
anrrency risk, price risk and interest rate rigk.

The investment management policy of the Series Trud is determined through the following process:
The Manager provides non-disordionary management of the Series Trust's assets and primarily will
ensure invedments are consistent with the investment objedives ofthe Series Trust and is responsible
for taking reasonable steps and exercising all due diligence 1o avoid the property of the Series Trust
being used or mvested contrary to the ivvestment and borrowang limitations sct out in the Trust Deed
and the Offering Memorandum, The Board of the Manager has ovenll responsibility for the
management of the Series Trust ruchire 1o the extent of its responsibilities as detailed in the relevant
Trust Dreed and Offering Memerandum.

The investment management policy is non-discretionary; the Series Tt will invest its assets on a
1:1 bass between the Zero Coupon Mote and the Performance Linked Mote (colledtively the “Notes™).
Consequently, the retum under the Series Trust depends on the performance of the Paformance
Linked Mote and the Zero Coupon Note, The retum under the Performance Linked Mote depends on
a retum linked to that of the Underlving Fund, the operating and financial performance of the
Performance Linked Mote [saer and other fadors which might affect the price of the Pedformance
Linked Mote, The retum under the Zero Coupon Mote depends on the fluctuation of AUD yvield curve,
the operating and financial performances of the Zero Coupon Note [ssuer. and the other factors which
might affect the price of the Zero Coupon Note,

The natire and extent of the fimancial ndriments owtsanding at the end of the reporting penod and
the risk management policies emploved by the Series Trust are discussed below.

(@)  Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the valwe of financial assets will fluctuate as a result of changes in
markel prices whether those changes are cased by fadtors specific to the indmidoal assets or
factors affecting all asscts in the marke,

The Series Tt is exposed to market risk on its investments as the redemption value of the
Performance Linked Note is linked to predetamined rules to that of the Underlying Fund, and,
therefore, the volatility of the portfolio. This risk is mitigated in part by the Zero Coupon Note
being redecmed on ther scheduled matunty date of 30 April 2025 at 100% of their principal
amount.

25
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE

COF WINTOM 15-05 (AUD)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2024

1. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT

POLICIES {continmed)

{m)  Market risk (continued)

The portfolio of the Underlying Fund comprised the following margin allocation:

Market Sector

Crops
Livestock
Energies

Base metals
Precious metals
Cumencics
Bonds
Rates/Cash equitics
Index

Credit
Industrials
Digital assgts
Founding

Total

(i  Foreign currency misk

%s Miargin % Margin
2024 2023
14.8% 15.5%
7.3% 1.7%
14.5% 14.6%
T.9% 4%

T. 1% 3.3%
20.4% 19.6%
B8 16.3%
5.3% 7.7%
7.3% T4%
2.4% 4.5%%
1.4% 1.6%
2.6% 1.2%
0.1% -0.1%%
100.0% 100,085

Foreign cumency risk is the risk that the value of financial assets or liabilities will Mluctuate doe
to changes in foragn exchange rtes, Unitsissned by the Senes Trust are denomimated in AUD
and inits are only issued and redecmed in that asrency. The majonity of the assets of the Scrics

Trust are invested in the Motes which are depominated in AUD.

The Series Trust is exposed to foreign currency risk to the extent that the Performance Linked
Mote has exposure o aoracy risk as the Underlying Fund towhich they are linked will reflec
the component imvesiments which are traded in currencies other than AUD. Accordingly, the
value of the portfolio and, therefore, the value of the Paformance Linked Note may be affected

favorably or unfavorably by fluctuations in aurency rates.

6
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE
COF WINTOM 15-05 (AUD)

ROTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the vear ended 31 July 2024
1l. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AXD RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES (continued)
(m)  Market risk (continued)
(i Foreign cirrency sk (continmed)
AL 31 July 2024, the Serics Trugt also has exposure to curency risk becanse it has asscts ad
liabilities denominated in cumrencies other than the AU The Series Trust's cumency exposiure

of net asscts was a5 follows;

Analysis of assets amd liabilities by currency (totals presented in AUD based on 31 July 2024
and 31 July 2003 exchange rates):

Asat 31 July 2024
JEY UsD GBFP AUD Tl
AUD
Aszels
Cah and cash equivalents A0, 832 15,552 6,597 4, TES MG 5,184,187
Amount due from broker - - TATERTE  2ATEAETG
Financial assete of fair
vitue through profit or loes - . - 105357068 105357.168
Interest receivable - . - . -
Other receivable - 637 . . 637
Total asseis 490,532 17.189 6497 112605950 113,120,868
Liahilities
Fedemption payable - - - (3, 158361} (3,158,961}
Accounts payable and
ncerued linbilties (27892} {334,070) - 6,686 (I0T.06T)
Total lshilices (279,392)  (334,371) . 2 B52.265) (3466,028)
Mot currency exposune 211440 {317.182) 6,897 I, T53. 685 109,654,840

7
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE

COF WINTOM 15-05 (AUD)

ROTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2024

1.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES {continmed)

{m)  Market risk (continued)

(i Foreign cirrency sk (continmed)

54t 023
TEY TsD GEFP AUD Toal
AUD
Aszes
Cuech oind cosh equivalends 504,130 343,009 51,036 3,040,639 4042814
Ameount due fream broker - - - 3.330,1%8 3330015
Financial aseets of fair
value through profil or loss - - - 125,613,495 125613498
Interest receivable - 322 18 127,581 128,121
Total assels 50,130 343,531 _ 1054 132301873 133,214,588
Liahilities
Fedemption payible - - - (1,751,380} (1,751,580}
Accounts payable and
acensed liabiltses (38,665 {54 E58) - (345,364) (338,767}
Total lakilites (38,6657 (54.538) - (1996844 (2L0HL34T)
Mot currency exposure AGSARE 258,683 SLOSE 130315025 131,124,241
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE
CF WINTOMN 15-05 (AUD)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the vear ended 31 July 2024
1. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AXD RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES (continued)
(m)  Market risk (continued)
(i Foreign cirrency sk (continmed)
Sensigfvity analyxis
A 107 (2023:10%%) strengthening of the AUD azainst the following ammencies at 31 July 2024
would have decreased/increased nel assels by the amounts shown below. This sensitivity

analysis represents management's best estimate of a reasonable possible change and assumes
that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

Met Assels et Assets

204 2023

AU AUD

Y 21144 46,947
UsD 3LTIE 28869
GEP 65 5,105

A 1P (2025 10%) weakening of the AUD against the above aurrencies at 31 July 2024 would
have had the equal but oppesite effedt on the above curmencies to the amounts shown above, on
the basis that all other variables remain constant.

Those investors whose financial assets are measured in curmencies other than the AUD will be
exposed to flucheations in foreign exchanze rates. Even when the net asset value of units of the
Series Trust is greater than the principal initially invested in AUD. the net asset value may have
decreaszed i terms of the ivedors' currencies.

{t)  Price risk

Price risk ansesmamly from uncertainty about future prices of financial mstruments held, which
are classified as “finmcial assets at fair value through profit or loss”", 1 represents the potential
loss the Series Trud might suffer through holding market positions m the face of price
MOVEments,

Investments n the Noles are valued at the close of cadh valuation day at a price provided by
Giobldman Sachs International {the * Caleulztion Agent™). For the purpose of the published MNet
Asset Value, the price provided by the Calanlation Agent is treated as conclusive by the Manager,
the Trustee, and the Admnidrator for the vear ended 31 July 2024 (2023 the Manager, HSBC
Trustee and the Trostee's Delegate).

4
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE

CF WINTOMN 15-05 (AUD)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2024

1.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES {continmed)

{m)  Market risk (continued)
(i) Price risk (continued)

Price risk of the Serics Trest anises from price fludusions of the Performance Linked Note,
These price fluctuations will be as a result of changes in the volatility of the managed
commuoditics futures which will have an effect on the value of the predetermined miles to that
of the Underlying Fund. These fluctuations will be reflected in the price of the Performance
Linked Mote and will affed the Series Trust's net asset value.

The retum on the units depends on changes in values of a portfolio including the Underlying
Fumil, The trading price of the units may vary considerably beforethematurity date due, among
odher things, to fluctuations in the price of the managed commodities futures that make up the
Underlying Fund and other events, The units are not equivalent 1o investing directly in the
Underlying Fund.

A005%% (2023 0.06%) increase in the managed commodities futures fiund at 31 July 2024, with
all other variables held constant, will increase the Series Trust's net asset value and profits by
approximately AUDL 301 (2023: AUDZ, 6500 A 0.05% (20273 0.06%0) decrease in the manazed
commodities futures fumd at 31 July 2024, with all other variables held constant, will decrease
the Series Trust's nel wsel value and profits by approximately AUDL 301 £2023: AUD2, 6500,
This sensitivity analysis represants management’ s best estimate of a reasonable posable dhange.

Some limitations of sensitivity analysis ane:

. the market price risk information is a relative estimate of risk rather than a precise and
accurale number,

. the market price information represents a hypothetical outeome and is not intended to be
predictive; and

. future market conditions can vary significantly From those experienced in the past,

(00 Trderest rate visk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of financial ingmments and futwre cash flows will
fluchuaie as a result of changes in marked inferest rates.

A0.72% (2023 1.41%) increase inthe AUD yield omrve at 31 July 2024, with all other vaniables
held constant, will decrease the Senes Trust's financial assets af fair value through profit or loss
and consequently the net asset value and profits by approximately AUDTI9830 (2023:
AUDITOSETI). A 0.72% (2023 1.41%) decrease in the AUD vield curve, with all other
variables held constant, will increase the Series Trust's net assel value by approximately
ALUDT39R30 (2023: AUDL, TO8ET1). This sensitivity analysis represents management’s best
estimate of 4 reasonable possible change.
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE

CF WINTOMN 15-05 (AUD)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2024

1.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES {continmed)

{m)  Market risk (continued)
(Hii) frderest rafe risk (continued)

The Series Trd is exposed to interest rate risk on its cash and cash equivalents, which are
placed in inlerest bearing accounts. ‘The amwount of cash and cash equivalents held =t
31 July 2024 amounts to 4 83% (2023; 3.16%) of the Scrics Trust's net asset value, The
sensitivity to changes in interest rates on these amounts and their consequent impact of the
Series Trust's net asset value i considered nol to be material. It is not the policy of the Series
Trust to retain cash except to cover anticipated costs, however the cash position ot the reporting
date includes amounts held to pay short term repurdhases, The sensitivity Lo a 1% (2023; 1%)
mevement in the AUD and USD mterest rates at 31 July 2024 is highly unlikely to result in a
significant incresse in interest eamed on cash held and management have asessed that my
potential merease or decrease i the Series Trust's total assels and profit i= not consadered to be
material. This sensitivity analysis represents management'’s best etimate of a reasonable
possible change

by Credit risk

Credit risk arises from financial instruments, cash and cash equivalents and deposits with
financial institutions and banks. The Series Trust is subject to a sgnificant concentration of
credit risk a5 it is exposed to fimndal instnoments issued by a single institution and maintains
cash and cash equivalents with a single bank.

Credit risk relates to the extent to which failures by counterpartics to discharge their obligations
could reduce the amount of future cash flows from financial instuments on hand as at the

reportisig date.

The ability to manage the aedit risk s mited 2= 3 result of the Senes Troat"s dated mvestment
objectives which require that it invests on a 1:1 bass between a Zero Coupon Mote isaied by
Signum Momentum Limited and Performance Linked Note issued by Ouartix Financial
Products IT Limited and its cash and cash equivalents are placed with the Series Trost's Tistee
and 1z affiliated entities withm the Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Group, In
addition, the Calculation Agent of the Nate is Goldman Sachs Intemational. This crodit risk is
managed on the basis that these financial inditutions and banks are independently raled with a
minimum rating of A" or its equivalent.

Credit risk disclosures are segmented into two sections based on whether the underiving
financial mstrument 1= subject o IFRS 9 imparment disclosires or not,

3l
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE
CF WINTOMN 15-05 (AUD)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2024

1. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES {continmed)

()  Cradit risk (contineesd}

Fimamciol maets subject to IFRS W5 impament requiremntants

The Sertes Trust's financial assets subject to the expecied credit loss model within IFRS 9 are
only cash and cash equivalents, amount due from broker and interest receivable, At 31 July
2024, the total of cash and cash equivalents, amount due from broker and interest receivable
was AUTYT. 76 million, on which no loss allowance had been provided (31 July 2023; total of
AUDT.6 million on which no less had been incurred). Thare is not considered to be any
concentration of credit rigk within these assets. No assets are considered impaired and no
amotints have been written off in the period.

Fimawrcicel axrets not subject (o TFRS 9 ingpeirment vedqud meme s

The Series Trust is exposed to credit risk on its financial instruments. These classes of financial
asacts are not subjed to IFRS 9's impairmant requircients as they are measured at FVPL. The
carying value of these assets represents the Serics Thudt's maximum exposure to credit risk on
financial mstruments not subjed to the IFRS @°s impaimment requirements on the respective
reporting dates. Hence. no separate maximum exposure to aredit risk disclosure is provided for
these instrunent s

Cn 31 July 2024, the Calaulation Agent was rated at A+/A-1 by S&P Global Ratings, Aa3(ayP-
Licrt by Moody's and A+F1 by Fitch Ratings. In addition, the Series Trust's cash and cash
equivalents are pleced with The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, which
was rated 4t AA-/A-1+ by S&P Global Ratings. Aa2/P-1 by Moody's and AA-F1+ by Fitch
Ratings mﬂ;l July 2024, The Performance Linked Notes [ssuer and Zero Coupon Notes 1ssuer
are not rated.

() Liguidity risk

Licudity risk 1= the risk that the Series Trust will encounter difficulty in risng fimds to med
commitments associated with financial assets. Liquidity risk may result from an inability to sell
a fmancial assel quickly at an amount close to its fair value.

Under the terms of the Offerimg Memorandum, the Senes Trua's unitholders may request for
their units to be repurchased on each repurchase day of the Series Tmest, The Manager will then
redeem a proportion of the Motes held by the Series Trust to fund the unit repurchase. The Notes
can be sold before their maturity date al close to their fair value by the provision of one month's
notice. The redemption tenms for the underlying Notes are paid to the unitholders within
twenty-three business days from the corresponding repurchase day, thus altowing seitlement
from the partial sale of the MNobes 1o be sdtled before the redemplion proceeds are due to be paid
to the unithalders. The Series Trud is exposcd to liquidity risk as the Notes in which the Scrics
Trust invests may not allow the Series Trust to redeem its units readily.
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE
COF WINTOM 15-05 (ALUD)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the yvear ended 31 July 2024
1. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES {continued)
() Liguidity risk fcontineed)
A summary of the analyses are as follows:

1 micath to 3 months
Lesathan  lesathan 3 fo lessthan  More thm 1

Asst 31 Fube 2024 I menth manths I yemr yeur Tovtal
AUD AUD AU AUD AUD

Asgais:
Crsh nnd cish equivalents 5,284,187 - . - 5284187
Amount due from broker ZATRATS = - = 2ATEARTE
Financinl assets af fuir vahe

through profit or loss - 105,357,168 - - 105,357,168
Interest receivible . - . . -
Redemption fee receivable 637 - - - 63T
Tidal nevnts T.T6E,TOD 105357168 - = 113,120,868
Linhilities:
Redemplion payabb (3. 158961 ) = - = {B.155.961)
Accounts pvable and

neereed liabiliies (307067 - s - {307.067)
Total linkilities (3,466,028) - - - (3.466.028)

1 month to 3 months
Lemthaon  lessthan 3 to lessthon  More thon |

Asal 31 July 2023 1 menth months 1 year year Tzl
ALD ALD ALY ALUD AR

Asmes:
Cmch and csh equivalents 4,142, 814 - - - 4142814
Amcunt die from broker 3330158 - . - 3330158
Financial aseets o far vahue

through profit or loss = 125613495 - - 125,613,495
Interest receivable - 128,121 - - 128,121
Total asieis TATZATE 125,741,616 - - 133,214, 558
Liabilities:
Fledemplion payshbe (1,751,580} - - - (17515500
Accounts payable and

acersed liabiliies {338,767) - - - [338.T6T)
Total lsbilities (2.090.347) {2.090,347)
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE
CF WINTOMN 15-05 (AUD)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2024

12. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Manager considers the capital of the Senes Trust to comprise the net proceeds from subscriptions
for and redemptions of units of the Series Trust.

The Series Trust invests virtually all of its assets in accordance with the investment objective (which
wis stabed in Mote 1) of the Senes Trest and the investment management policy 15 non-discretionary.

There are no regulatory or datutory capital requirements to which the Series Trust must comply with.

13 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Managzer is responsible imder the Amended and Restated Master Trust Deed for the management
of the mvestment and re-mvestment of the assets of the Series Trud, the exercise of the pewer to
borrow money in resped of the Series Trust, declare and direct the Trustee to make distributions or
interim distributions to the unitholders out of the income and/or the capital of the Series Trest and for
the iz=ue and repurchase of units of the Senies Trud.

The Trusteg is responzble under the Amended and Restated Master Trust Deed for the administration
of the Series Trust and for keeping the register of unitholders.

All the related parties are entitled to receive fees and expenses out of the assets of the Scrics Trust.
Details of these fees are sel out in Note 5 1o the financial gatements.

14, FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION

The level in the fair value hicrarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorised in its
aitirety shotild be determined on the basis af the lowest level input that is sigmifican to the fair value
measurement in its entirety. For this purpose, the significinee of an inpat is assessed against the fair
value messmmrement in its entiredy. 1F a Fair value measurement uses observable nputs that nequire
significant adjustment based on imobservable inputs, that messurament is a level 3 measurement.
Assessing the significance of a particular input Lo the fair value mesmament i ils entirdy roquires
Judzment, considering Factors speafic to the azset or lisbility.

The determination of what constitutes “observable’ requires significant judgment by the Manager, The
Manager considers observable data to be market data that is readily available, regularly distributed or
updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprctary, and provided by indepmdent sources that are actively
imvedved in the relevant market.

The Senes Trust's fnancial assels are not quobed in adive markets, such as the Zéaro Coupon Netes
and Performance Linked Motes, Fair values of such assds are determined by the Calculation Agent
using valuation models in accordance with the term sheets. Such models are not based entirely on
oheervable data as a result the Series Trust's financial assets are all classified within level 3. Atable
showing the split of the unquoted investments berween level 1, level 2 and level 3 has not been
included as the financial assets are all classified as level 3.

M
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE

COF WINTOM 15-05 (AUD)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2024

14.

FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION (continued)

Deseription of significant unobservable input to valuation:
The significant unobservable imput used in the fair valee measurements categorised within Level 3 of
the Fair value hierarchy as at 31 July 2024 and 2023 are shown bel oo

Cmantitative Information of

Slgnificant the slgnificant

Instrum eni Valaation techniqoe unahsarvable npat unshzervable inpan
Performmce Lmked Ird party valention® Index performance 202:8: 3.11% (2023: 5.10%)

Mote
“Revsed on the valnarion by the Calenlarion Agan wing valwarion medels fnacetdanee with the term
sheet

The Performance Linked Mote is linked to an index performsance which reflecis the value of the
Underlving Fund. Mote 11 tothe financial statements discloses the portfolio of the Underlying Fimd
aind the NAV ofthe Underbvimg Fundis composed of different investiments, indices or strategies where
the uncertainty around correlation is high, thus, the quantitative discloamre of the sensitivity of the
change in the significant unobservable input is not meaningful. Significant increases/{decreases) in
the mdex performance in isedation would resull i a significantly higher(lower) far valee
T EASUrEnenl,

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instraments for the year ended 31 July 2024 There
were no transfers into or out of the level 3 measurement during the vear,

31 July 2024 ALY
Balance as at | August 2023 125613495
Disposals during the year

Proceeds from sale {24,555 452)

Met realised loss on financial &ssets gt fair value through profit or loss (401,718}

et change in unrealised gain on financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss 4,700,843

Balance at 31 July 2024 105,357,168
Total gamn for the yvear included in profit or loss for

assets held at the end of the reporting period ﬂ
31 July 2023 ALY
Balmce as at | Angud 2022 144,556,552
Diisposals during the vear:

Procesds from sale {19,765 856)

Metreahsed loss on financial asscts at fair value through profit or loss (983,167}

Met change in unrealised gaim on financial assets at Gir

value through profit or loss 1,469,966

Balance at 31 July 2023 125,613,495
Todal gain for the year incleded in profit or loss for

assels held at the end of the reporting period 486,790

3s
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE
CF WINTOMN 15-05 (AUD)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2024

15. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
Subsequent to the reporting date and up to the date of approval of these financial statements, 6 050,00
redeemable units in atotal redemption amount of ALTDS 985, 7% were redeemed from the Series Trust.
Further redemption requests of 1,190,000 and 640,000 redeenmble units were receved to be dealt at
2 Drecemnber 2024 and 6 January 2025, respectively. once final pricing has been approved.
There were no other material events after the end of the reporting period up to the date of the
authorisation of these financial satements,

16. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The fimancial datements were approved and suthorised for ise by the Tnestee and Manager on 28
January 2025,

36
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2024 11
106,557,445 10,446,892
3,964,087 388,639
102,593,358 10,058,253
103,140,000
0.9947 98
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90

2024 10 21
13

114,773,046

11 619,515,947

48,232,355

64,464,984,081
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2024 11 29
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10 EQ
2023 12 31
2023 2022
347,555 52,390 240,329 36,227
3,160,435 476,404 2,963,790 446,762
1,874,066 282,497 1,235,705 186,270
5,382,056 811,291 4,439,824 669,259
10 (302,222)  (45,557)  (937,411)  (141,305)

5,079,834 765,734 3,502,413 527,954

5,079,834 765,734 3,502,413 527,954

12 750,000 113,055 750,000 113,055

4,329,834 652,679 2,752,413 414,899

5,079,834 765,734 3,502,413 527,954

2024 26
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2023 2022
2,001,198 301,661 2,128,110 320,791
2,001,198 301,661 2,128,110 320,791

(559,027)  (84,268) (1,119,588)  (168,767)
(79,848)  (12,036)  (285,203)  (42,992)
1,362,323 205,357 723,319 109,033
223,200 33,645 140,398 21,164
(8,102) (1,221) (3,716) (560)
215,008 32,424 136,682 20,603
1,577,421 237,780 860,001 129,637
1,577,421 237,780 860,001 129,637
1,577,421 237,780 860,001 129,637
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1Q EQ
2023 12 31
2022 750,000 113,055 1,892,412 285,262 2,642,412 398,317
860,001 129,637 860,001 129,637
860,001 129,637 860,001 129,637
2022 12 31 750,000 113,055 2,752,413 414,899 3,502,413 527,954
2023 750,000 113,055 2,752,413 414,899 3,502,413 527,954
1,577,421 237,780 1,577,421 237,780
1,577,421 237,780 1,577,421 237,780
2023 12 31 750,000 113,055 4,329,834 652,679 5,079,834 765,734
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2023 2022
13 638,521 96,251 698,914 105,354
638,521 96,251 698,914 105,354

(160) (24) (3.716) (560)

(160) (24) (3.716) (560)

638,361 96,227 695,198 104,794

1,235,705 186,270 540,507 81,476

1,874,066 282,497 1,235,705 186,270

1,874,066 282,497 1,235,705 186,270

1,874,066 282,497 1,235,705 186,270
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10 EQ

2023 12 31

10 EQ
102 102

2024
12
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2023 2022

(79,848) (285,203)

26,519 2022 21,097
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2023 2022
497,466 477,576

2023 2022
223,200 140,398
223,200 140,398

2023 2022
(7,942) (2,872)
(160) (844)
(8,102) (3.716)

2023 2022
223,200 140,398
(8,102) (3,716)
215,098 136,682

2035
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10

2023 2022
6,168 33,858
291,887 199,881
49,500 6,590
347,555 240,329

2023 2022
3,160,435 2,963,790
3,160,435 2,963,790

1.1

2023 2022
(201,404) (915,342)
(27,639) (21,452)
(654) (617)

(72,525)

12 31 (302,222) (937,411)
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2023 2022
6,168 33,858
3,452,322 3,163,671
1,874,066 1,235,705
5,332,556 4,433,234
(27,639) (21,452)
(201,404) (915, 342)
(229,043) (936,794)
2023 2022
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
750,000 750,000 750,000
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13
2023 2022
1,577,421 860,001
160 3,716
1,577,581 863,717
(383,719) (314,887)
(635,189) (135,119)
79,848 285,203
638,521 698,914
2023 2023 2023 12 31
1,235,705 652,773 (14,412) 1,874,066
1,235,705 652,773 (14,412) 1,874,066
14
102 33.1
15
2023 12 31
16

2023 12 31
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Dwcuzign Envelope 1D, BCE4BESF C-E6037-4 180-B068-FED1Z 1610279 )

IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

Balance sheet
As at 31 December 2023

2023 202
Maote usDs UsDs
Current assets
Debtors and prepayments 8 347,555 240,329
Amounts owed by related parties g 3,160,435 2,863 790
Cash at bank and in hand 1,874,066 1,235,705
5,382 056 4439824
Creditors: amounts falling due
within one year 0 {302,223) {937.411)
Met current assets 5,079,834 3,502.413
Met Assets 5,079,834 3,502,413
Capital and reserves
Called up share eapital 12 750,000 750,000
Retained earnings 4,328,834 2752413
Equity attributable to owners of the parent 5,079,834 3502413

The notes on pages 10 te 17 form part of the financial statements.

The financial statements on pages & to 17 were approved by the Board of Directers on 26th  Apnl 2024 and signed
on its behalf by:

DacySgred by Do Segrad By
- -~
R ik s

Page 7
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Decirzgn Envelops ID. BCESBSF C-6037-4 180-B068-FED121610273 )

IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited
Annual report and financial statements

Statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022

Motes usns usDs

Tumover 2,001,198 2,128,110
Gross profit 2,001,198 2,128,110

Administrative expenses |559,027) (1,1158,588)
Cther operating losses 4 (79.848) (285,203}

Oparating profit 1,362,323 723,319

Interest recelvable and similar income Ga 223,200 140,398

Interest payable and similar charges b (8,102} {3,716}

Met interest receivable 215,088 136,682

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 1,577,421 880,001

Tax on profit on ordinary activities T - -
Profit for the financial year 1,577.421 60,001

Other comprehensive income for the year - =

Total comprehensive income for the year 1,577.4H B60,001

All results in the cumrent and preceding year derive from continuing operations.

The notes on pages 10 to 17 form parnt of the financal statements.

Page &
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Deciszgn Envelops 1D BCESBSF C-6037-4 180-B068-FED121610273 )

1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

Statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 Dacember 2023

sha?: I:;:i:;: E:::: E ol Eauy

UsD% usos usD%

Balance as at 1 January 2022 750,000 1,882.412 2642412
Prafit for the year - 250,001 850,001
Total comprehensive income for the year 2 860,001 850,001
Balance as at 31 December 2022 750,000 2,752,413 3,502,413
Balance as at 1January 2023 750,000 2,752,413 3,502,413
Profit for the year - 1,577,421 1,577,421
Total comprehensive income for the year - 1,577,421 1,577,421
Balance as at 31 December 2023 750,000 4,329,834 5,079,834

The notes on pages 10 to 17 form part of the financial statements.

Page &
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Deciszgn Envelops 1D, BCESBSF C-6037-4 180-B068-FED121610273 )

1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2023

Mote 2023 2022
usDs usDs
Net cash generated from operating activities 13 638,521 698 514
Taxation paid - -
Net cash generated from operating activities 838,521 698,914
Cash flow from financing activities
Interest paid {160) (3,718}
Met cash used in financing activities (160) {3,716)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 638,361 685,198
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,235,705 540,507
LCash and cash equivalents at the end of the year: 1,874,066 1,235,705
Cash and cash equivalents consists of:
Cash at bank and in hand 1,874,066 1,235,705
Total of cash and cash equivalents 1,874,066 1,235,705

The notes on pages 10 ko 17 form part of the financial statements.

Page 9
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Docusign Envelope 1D, GCESESF C-6037-4 180-B068-FED121610279 )

1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
Annual report and financial statements

Hotes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

1 Summary of compliance

Tha mdmadual nancedl statements of 1 EQ Management Bermuda Limited ({the "Compary®) have besn
prepared in comphance with Uniled Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financesd Reporting Standard
102, "The Finandial Reportng Standard applicable in the Undted Kingdom and the Regublc of Irdand” (FRS
105

F Summary of significant accounting peolicies

The prncipal accounting policies appled in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below
Thase polices have been consistently applied to &l 1he years preserted, unless olherwise staled

{a) Basis of preparation

Thasa financal statements are prepared on a going concam basis, wder the histoncal cost convention, as
mgdified by the necognibion of certain finenciad assets and liabdties measured & far value

Tha preparabion of Enantal statemerds requres the use of codain onbical accounbing eslimates. It alsa
Paiuings randgemant 1o woarcide 5 pdgement m the proceds of @pplwng the Comgany Socourting pobcies

(b} Golng Concern

T Company has 8 mcerd of generaling cosh from opereticns and £ i5 noted That the majoty of revenues
A PeCUTAIG O Aatiee . Tisding contnbulion for the 1vrst part of D024 80e o [ifsh wilh dxpeclabo s

The Cwrectors have a reasonable expectaton that the Company has adeguate resowces lo continue in
oparabianal existence for the next bveke months from the signing of the financial statements. Accordingly, the
Directors contiree to adopt the gong concem basis in prepenng these financidl statements: The Directors
bebave that the Company will conbinue in operabional enastence for the foreseeabls future

[e) Fereign currency

(i}  Funcbonal and prasentshosal cumency
The Company's functional and presentetional cumency is United States Dotars (LUSDE).

(W Trassachons and batances

Foreign cumency transactions are translated info the Jundional cumency of the underiying ertities wsing the
spot exchangs rate al the dates of the transactions

Al sach penod end, oneign curmency monelary Lems are lranslated wsing the dosing rate.  Mor-mondlany
flems meagsured at histoncal ool are translaled wing the exchange rate af Me date of the ransact:on and non-
monetary items measured & fair value are measured using the exchange rate when fair vaise was
ditanminid

Foreign exchange gains and 1082es resultng form the sedtiement of transechions and from 1ne transiation a1
penod-end exchangs rales of monetary agsets and labiilss denominated n doreign curmences are recognisad
in the total prodt and total comprenensive income statement within ‘Foreign exchange (Foss kgain.”

Page 10

137/188



EDINETOOOO
O0000000000000oogoo0OOan(eLsoss)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

Docusign Envelope 1D BCESBSF C-6037-4 180-B068-FED 21610273 )

1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
Annual report and financial statements

Hotes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2 Summary of significant accounting pelicles - (continued)
{d} Revenue recagnition

Revenue 5 messured at the fmr value of the consdershon recened or recevabds in respact of services
resdered from the provision of collective mvesiment scheme, net of any dscourds and rebetes allowed by tha
Company. and company value added lanes. Revonua is recogresed on on accnials bims, with daelermsl of army
cagh redened m advance. Defermed income S reldesod bo the incede stalemont ovie the pancd bo which i
redates  Other revenue iterns relate to

(i Interest income
Irerest income 15 recoonised on an accruals basis

(%) Dividend imcome
Cwiidend incomea is recognised when the nght to eceve payment is established

() Management rechargs incomefaxpense
Managemaent rechangas are cafoulated bated on Te sefvices provided and cosls incumed by/Fom subsidmnes
ard cihae group companses dunang Bh yar

() Management fes

Management leas ang recenved from the imvestment funds under management as compensation for (he
management senvices prowided by the Company. Managemeant fees vany from 001 75% per quarter to 0.2%
per quartar of sither the product of the irdial unit prce and the numbsr of unis in issue al a Valuabion Day
coinciding with & Dealing Day, or of the Mat Asset Value (all a5 dafined in the Offenng Memoranda andior
Appandicgs of the relevant rvesiment funds) for ad hunds  n Sofe cases, Ihese management fees e
subject bo & minimum andior an additional feed lee gso exists

(w) Consultancy fess
Consultancy fees are recaved from M irvestment funds undsr managament lor senvices proddad by the
Company relating to the set up ortermnation of an imvestment fund or sub knd. Such lees are determned on
a case-by-case bass

[#) Administrative expenses
Expenszes are accounted for on an accruals basis and included within aperateng expanddurs.

Managament rechamges are inclided N administrabve expenses and calculated based on the services
provided and costs incumed toffrom other Group anfities duning the yvear

(i Provislons and contingencles

Provisions s rcognised when the Compeny Mas @ prodent gal or conslnictive obligation s a resull of past
gverts; it is probeble that an outfow of resourcas will be required (o settle the obbgabon; and the amount of
1 abligation can be eslimated rambly

Page 11
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Docusign Envelope 1D, GCESESF C-6037-4 180-B068-FED121610279 )

1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
Annual report and financial statements

Hotes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2 Summary of significant accounting policles - (continued)

(9] Impairment of nondinancial assets

Al sach balance shool dite, non-nencial assels nol camed af fair value are assedsed to determing whalher
tharg is an indicabon 1ha the assel mey Do impaired.  H ERere i5 such 2n indication, the recoverabie amount of
I BEE&] 15 Companid 10 thie camyng amaount of the asgal

Tha raciwrerable amourt of the asset 15 The higher of the far value less Costs 1o Sell and valus inuie. Valuein
use 15 dafined @5 the present value of the lulure pre-ta and inleres! cash Nows obloinatie 85 & result of the
gasets continued use. The preda and inberest cash Bows are discounted uting & poe-dax decount rate thed
represents the cument markel nsk-free rate and the risks mherent in e asset.

I the mecovarable amourt of the susal 5 eshimated o be lower than e camyng amount, the camsng amourt
is reduced bo its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recogresed in the income statement, unless the
assel has bean revalued when the amounts are recognised in other comprehensive mcome to the axtert of
arny previously recognised revaluation. Theneafter any excess is recogrised in The income statemant

It an impairment 1955 5 subsequently reversad, the camang amount of the assel is increased to the revised
eshimate of its recoverable amount but only to the extent that the rewvised camang amount does not excesd the
camyng amourd that would have been determined {net of depreciabion) had no mpairment loss been
recogmised in prior penods A meversal of an impaimment 1055 i5 recogmsed in the tolal proft and folal
compraliensve Ncome.

{h} Financial Instruments
The Company has chosen to adopt Sactions 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of financial instruments

(i} Finandca assets

Basic financial assels, including amounts due from group undertakngs are inially recopnsed at ithe
trengaction prce. Financial assats are derscogrised when (a) the contractual nghts to the cash fows fnom the
assel expire or are setlfed, or {b) substantisfy all the nsks and rewards of the ownership of the asset are
frangiemed to another party o {¢] despite havang refained some significant nsks and rewards of cwneeship,
cortrol of 1he asset has been translermad to anolihar pamy who has the pradical abilily 1o unileteraly sall tha
Bsset o an unrelatad thind party wthoul imposang additional restnicions

(% Financis tsklities

Basic fnancial kabilibes, incuding amounts owed [0 group undectakings and olher payabies &re indialy
recognised & transaction pace, unless the amangsment constibibes a financing transaction, where the debt
imstrument is measurad at the presert vabue of the fubure payments (net of directly atinbutable issue costs)
discounted af the marked rate of interesl  Issus cosls are recogresed in the income statement overihe term of
the debt cn an effectve interest rate basis.

Drabt mnctruments ane subseguently camied at amortised cost, using e affactive mtenest rate mathod

Financial liabeities ane derecogmised when the Babidy is edinguished, that is whan e contractual obligation s
discharged, cancelled or expiras

Page 12
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Docusign Envelope 1D BCESBSF C-6037-4 180-B068-FED 21610273 )

1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
Annual report and financial statements

Hotes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2 Summary of significant accounting pelicles - (continued)

(I} Offgetting

Financie assels and labilties are offsat and the net amounts presented on the financial stetements whean
thare is a legally enforcesbls nghl to set off the recagnbion amounts and thers is an infenhon o settle on a nat
basis or o realise the asset and settle the iabisty simultansously

(i) Share capital

Ordinary shares are dassified as equity. Incremental costs direcly attnbutable to the issue of new ordinary
shares or options are shown in equaly &s a deduction, net of tex, from the procesds

(k) Distributions to equity holders

Dradends and ciher dtbnbulions to the Company's shareholders afe recogrited as & labiily in the nancia
statements o the period in which the dvidends and othr disinbutions are approved by B stakeholdars
Thwisd armounts ane mecognised in the statement of changes in equity

{1} Related party transactions

Tha Company discloses ransactions with miated parties which are nof whidly owned witten the same group
Wihera approprale, Irantachcens of & similar nalury ane agoregaled unless, in thd SpEnion of Bvie direclons,
separgle disdosure i5 necessany o understand the efect of the trensactions on Mé Company Bnancial
statements

3 Critical aceounting judgem entes and eztimation uncertainty

Estimates and judgements ane confinually ewaluabed and are Dased on Misloncal experence amd oiher factors,
includng expectations of fulure everds that are believed 1o be feas anable wdar tha CrcUmEtances

Key accounting estimates and assumplions

The Comparny makes estimetes snd assumptions conceming the fulure. The esbriates and assumplbions. that
Piinieh @ St sk of causing @ matena adustmant to M caming &mounts of astels and labdatios within
1 nt Bnancial veer ane sedressed balow,

(i} Provizons for bed debls and Acomied iccme

Tha Company recogreses trade deblors and accnsed income al recoverable amounts. The recoverabls
amount of trade deblors and acohued INcome IS assessed on an ndwvideal basis Using the judgement of
managemint 1o atsess the recoveratle value of hess atsets and quanbily ihe level of previsioning which
takes inbo BcOOUN Bn assessment of the customes™s curmant and histons Bnancal potion, age profde of
acciued inosme and outstanding debt and assessment of histoncal recoverny rales
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Deciszgn Envelops 1D, BCESBSF C-6037-4 180-B068-FED121610273 )

1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
Annual report and financial statements

Hotes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

4 Operating profit

Operabing profit is stated after credding

2023 W32
LUs0s UsDE
Foraign exchangs lossas {79 848) (285 303}

T audil leg Sitnbuted B0 the Company Tor the wear of $26.519 (2032 21,097 s inclded within the armual
management charge from a mmlaled enbty by oommon conbol

5 Employees and Directors
ey management com pensation

Key managament includes the directors and members of senior managemant, The compensation pasd of
pavainls by he Company of other affiisted companies to key menagemant i8 shown below

2023 a3z
usD$ usDE
Salanes and other short lam benafits 497 456 ATV &T6
[ Net interest expense

(@) Interest recelvable and similar income

2023 032

UsD§ UsDE
Inleraal an intaroompansy Kan m&m 140 398
Total irnterest receivable and similar income 223,300 140, 398
(b} Interest payable and similar charges

2023 2

UsD§ USD§
Bank charges [7 2a2) 25T
Bank intorast payable {160] [B44)
Total interest expense on financial liabillties [B.102) B 716)
[=) Met interest expense

2023 nx

LUSD§ usDE
Interes] rechi-abla and Ssmilar income 23,300 140398
Inberest pavabile and simdar changes [B.102) {3. 716}
Met interest inceme 216,088 135 682

T Ineame Tax

Under curmant Bermuda laws, the Comparny s nol reguired 1o pay @ny tades in Bamuda on eithar income of
capital gans The Compary has recesed an underfaking from he Minister of Finance in Bemuda axempling
il from gy such [aoes ot leas! untd he year 2035

Faga 14
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b Debtors and prepayments
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Trade deblors
Accrmd noome
Propaymants

9 Amounts owed by related parties

Amounts owed by related parties

2023 032
UsSD$ uSD§
6,168 33,858
291,807 199,551
49,500 5.550
347 666 240,329
2023 2022
LEDE USDE
3,160,435 2.963.790
3.160.435 2.963.790

Tha amourts owdd by group undirdaldngs are unsdcundd, hioe ne o d dabe of répavmant and ane mpayvable
on demand, Any group undertakngs ovar €1 ($1.1) mBlion bears interest atl a rafe of 5% por annum

10 Creditors

Amounts falling due within gne year

Amounts owed to rekated partes
Accnals

Defemed incoms

Other craditors

Al 31 DhaCiim besr

2023 022
Usng Lshg
(201 404) (915.342)
{27,639) {21.452)
554} 617}
{T2,528) .
(302 222] (937,411}

The amounts dus to group undetarngs are unsacured, Interest nee, have no fiied date of repayment and &

repayable on demand

" Financlal instruments

The company his the lowing Snanci instnements

Fmancial asseds that are measured at amortised cost

Trade deblors
Other recenrables
Cash and cash equivalents

023 032

UsDg Usng
6,168 33,558
3452382 3,163,674
1,874,066 1,235 705

5,332 655 343374
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Deciizign Envelops 1D, BCESBIF C-6037-4 180-B068-FED121610273 )

1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
Annual report and financial statements

HNotes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

" Financial instruments (continued)

2023 32
UsDE UshE
Financial liabeities meaturad al amortsed cost
Accngals {27,639} {21 453)
Amounts owed Lo eialed partias (#01 404) [915.42)
[229,043] (536,794 ]
12 Share capital 2023 a2
LE0s L=ns
Authorigsed
1,000,000 common shares of USDE1 each 1,000,000 1000 000
Issued and fully paid
TS0 000 commaon shams of LIS0DE1 aach 750,000 750000
The Company has one class of share capital which cames no nght to fieed ncome
13 MNotes to the statement of cash Nows
Reconciliation of operating profit to net cazh from operating activities
2023 22
UsD§ usDE
Profit for the financial year 1877 421 BB0.01
Adjusimaents for
Iriliriest dapangs 160 376
Cperating profit 1,677,681 BES.TIT
Wiorking capdal movements.
{increase) in debtors and prepayments (383,719} {394 827)
|Decreasa) in payables (635,189] [135.119)
Foraign exchangs movement 79,848 a5 3
Cash flow from operating activities 538,521 e 914
Analysis of changes in net funds
At1Jan Cash Mows Exchange At 31 Dee
2023 T AV st 2023
UsS0D§ UsDE UsD$ UsD§
Cash af bark 1,235 105 652,773 (14472} 1 BT4 085
Tatal 1,235,706 652,773 (14,412} 1,874,066

FPaga 16
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Docusign Envelope 1D BCE4EHF C-6037-4 180-B068-FEDZ 1610273 )

1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
Annual report and financial statements

Motes to the financial statements
Faor the year ended 31 December 2023
14 Related party transactions

Other than note 5, transactions with other wholly owned subsidianss relaled by common controd ane not
disciosed as the Company has taken advantags of the exemplion in section 33 18 of FRS 102

15 Controlling parties

A% 3 Decambier 2033, thi uiimabe hoding company inla which (he resuts & oonsolideted B Saphilus
San (8 Lusembeourg enbity)

15 Ewents after the end of the reporting period

There have been no matenal svents afler the reportmg date which g disdosure of adjustments to the
firancial statements for the vear endad 31 Decamber 2003

Paga 17
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1
(CIBC Caribbean Bank and Trust Company Cayman Limited)
2024 11 25,920,000 39 718
2
(1Q EQ Consultants (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.)
2024 11 1,000,000 1,237
2024 11 29
112.37
10 EQ
3
2024 11 20
4
2024 11 405
1

Q@
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Independent Auditor®s Report

The Trustee

Philosophic 2 Investment Trust - Bond Plus Fund Linked to the Performance of

Winton 15-05 (AUD)

(A series trust of an open-ended umbrella unit trust constituted by a Master Trust Deed and

Supplemental Trust Deed under the laws of the Cayman Islands)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Philosophic 2 Investment Trust - Bond Plus Fund
Linked to the Performance of Winton 15-05 (AUD) (the ““Series Trust””), which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 July 2024, and the statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to

the financial statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Series Trust as at 31 July 2024, and its financial performance and
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor s responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Series
Trust in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants = International
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards)
(IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 4 to the financial statements which describes that the financial

statements for the year ended 31 July 2024 have not been prepared on a going concern basis. Our

opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Other Information

Other information consists of the information included in the Series Trust®s management and

administration information. Management is responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have

nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and the Trustee for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust~
s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to

ligquidate the Series Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Trustee is responsible for overseeing the Series Trust”s financial reporting process.

Auditor®s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume

responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor®s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with I1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Series Trust s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management ”s use of the going concern basis of accounting.
When such use 1is inappropriate and management uses an alternative basis of accounting, we
conclude on the appropriateness of management s use of the alternative basis of accounting. We
also evaluate the adequacy of the disclosures describing the alternative basis of accounting
and reasons for its use. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the

date of our auditor®s report.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Trustee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.

Ernst & Young Ltd.

Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands
28 January 2025
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Independent auditor®s report to the members of 1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements of 1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited(the “ company®):
give a true and fair view of the state of the company®s affairs as at 31 December 2023 and of its
profit for the year then ended; and
have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice, including Financial Reporting Standard 102““The Financial Reporting Standard applicable
in the UK and Republic of Ireland; and

have been prepared in accordance Bermudian Companies Act 1981.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:
the total profit and total comprehensive income for the year;
the balance sheet;
the statement of changes in equity;
the statement of cash flows; and
the related notes 1 to 16.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and
United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102““The Financial

Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (I1SAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor®s

responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council®s (the
“FRC"s") Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors® use of the going concern

basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company®"s
ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial

statements are authorised for issue.
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Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are

described in the relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual® report, other than the
financial statements and our auditor®s report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other
information contained within the annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives
rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are

required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors® responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation

of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company®s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the

company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor”s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor®s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken

on the basis of these financial statements.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on

the FRC"s website at  www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our

auditor®s report.
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Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud
Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in
respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of

detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below.

We considered the nature of the company®s industry and its control environment, and reviewed the
company®s documentation of their policies and procedures relating to fraud and compliance with laws
and regulations. We also enquired of management about their own identification and assessment of the

risks of irregularities.

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework that the company operates in, and
identified the key laws and regulations that
had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. These included Bermudian Companies Act 1981; and
do not have a direct effect on the financial statements but compliance with which may be

fundamental to the company®s ability to operate or to avoid a material penalty.

We discussed among the audit engagement team regarding the opportunities and incentives that may exist
within the organisation for fraud and how and where fraud might occur in the financial statements.

As a result of performing the above, we identified the greatest potential for fraud in the following

areas, and our specific procedures performed to address them are described below
The valuation of accrued income requires significant management judgement and therefore there
is potential for management bias in revenue recognition. In response, we tested the design and
implementation of controls regarding the valuation of accrued income, as well as performing
substantive tests of detail. Our substantive testing undertaken, on a sample basis, compared
management®s estimate of recoverable values to amounts billed and recovered post year-end, and
challenged management on recoverable values by assessing historic billing and recovery rates

based on our understanding of the specific customer circumstances.

In common with all audits under 1SAs (UK), we are also required to perform specific procedures to
respond to the risk of management override. In addressing the risk of fraud through management
override of controls, we tested the appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments; assessed
whether the judgements made in making accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and
evaluated the business rationale of any significant transactions that are unusual or outside the
normal course of business.

In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to the risks identified included the following:
reviewing financial statement disclosures by testing to supporting documentation to assess
compliance with provisions of relevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect on
the financial statements;
performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may
indicate risks of material misstatement due to fraud;
enquiring of management and legal counsel concerning actual and potential litigation and claims,
and instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations; and

reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance.
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Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company*s members, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermudian Companies Act 1981. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
company®s directors those matters we are required to (or have expressly agreed in this letter to)
state to them in an independent auditor®s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the

company®s members, as a body, for our audit work, for our reports, or for the opinions we have formed.

Deloitte LLP
St Helier
30th April 2024
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